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VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better guality of life to the employees.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

CODE OF CONDUCT

International Knitwear Limited being engaged in the Local and export of garments
and providing dyeing facilities is:

- Committed to provide quality products and services to all its local and
international customers.

- Further committed to comply with all applicable Regulatory and
Customers’ requirements, thereby ensuring achievement of customers’
continuous satisfaction.

= An equal opportunity employer which does not differentiate between its
employees on the basis of cast, creed, sex or religious affiliations.

- Always willing, through a liberal training policy, to educate, train and
groom its employees to enhance their professionalism, commitment and
personal growth leading to achievement of greater goals.

Committed to the well-being of its employees by adopting generous welfare
policies and practices.

In return International Knitwear Limited expects from its employees that:

- As representatives of the Company they must at all times behave
appropriately and strictly follow all rules and regulations of the Company.

- They must devote their time, attention, abilities and energy exclusively
for the performance of their duties and must not engage themselves in
any other occupation, business or employment whatsoever without prior
written consent of the Company.

- They must not disclose any confidential information pertaining to the
business of the Company to any person inside or outside the company.

- They must protect all records, reports and other published or
unpublished documents of the Company and promptly hand over all
these to the Company upon leaving, for whatever reason, the
employment of the Company. They must not also remove any or all of the
said records, reports and documents from the premises of the Company
without appropriate authorization.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Natice is hereby given that the Thirtieth (30th) Annual General Meeting of International Knitwear Limited will be
held on Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 03:00 p.m. at F-2A/L 5.1.T.E Karachito transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

(i) To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Octaber 28, 2019.

(i) To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2020, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon,

(iii) To declare and approve final cash dividend @ 5% I.e. PKR 0.50 per share for the year ended June 30, 2020, as
recommended by the Board of Directors.

{iv) To appoint auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2021. The present
auditors M/s RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman, Chartered Accountants, refire and being eligible have
offered themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolution:

(v) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

RESOLVED that the transaction carried out by the Company in the normal course of business with related
parties during the year ended June 30, 2020 be and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

OTHER BUSINESS

(Vi) To transact any other business with the permissien of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

?M‘,fwm

JAVED KHAN
Company Secretaory

Karachi: October 05, 2020
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTES:

1. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for
registration from October 21, 2020 to October 27, 2020 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at
the office of the Company's Share Registrar;

€DC Share Registrar Services Limited

Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 99-8, Block ‘B', 5.M.CH.5,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: (32-21) 34326053
Emall: info@cdcsrsl.com / Website: www.cdcsrsl.com

at the close of business on October 20, 2020 will be treated in time for the purpose of Annual General
Meeting,

2. A member, who has deposited hisfher shares into Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Limited, must bring
his/her participant’s 1D number and CDC account/sub-account number along withoriginal Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original Passport at the time ofattendingthe meeting.

3. Inlight of the threat by the evolving coronavirus {COVID-19) situation, the Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan vide Circular No, 5 dated March 17, 2020 has advised the Company to modify their usual planning
for Annual General Meeting in order to protect the well-being of the sharehaolders. The Shareholders who are
interested to attend the AGM through Video Conference, are hereby requested to get themselves registered
with the Company Secretary office by praviding the following detail at the earliest but not later than 24 hours
before the time of AGM (i.e. before 3.00 p.m. on October 26, 2020) through following means:

a)  Mobile/WhatsApp: 0300-8227586
b) E-mail: javed@internaticnalknitwear.com

Sharehclders are advised to mention Name, CNIC Number, Folio/CDC Account Number, cell humber and
email D for identification. The shareholders can participate in the AGM through wideo-link, i.e.

https://z00m.us/download.

Upan receipt of the above information from the interested shareholders, the Company will send the login
credentials at their e-mail address. On the date of AGM, shareholders will be able to login and participate in
the AGM proceedings through their smartphone / computer devices.

In view of the above the Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda
items of the AGM by using the aforesaid means:
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

4. As per Sectian 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace its

physical shares with hook-entry frem in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of this Act, i.e., May 30 2017.

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the
brekers or invester Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrap less from, this will
facilitate them in many ways, including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of
physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulation of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

5. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his/her

proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her, and a praxy so appointed shall have such rights, as
respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a member. A proxy must be a
member of the Company.

6, Form of proxy, in order to be valid must be properly filled-in/executed and received at the registered office of

the Company situated at F2 A/L S.|.T.E Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting
excluding holidays

7.  Members holding shares in physical form are requested to promptly notify Shares Registrar of the Company of

any change in their addresses. Sharsholders maintaining their shares in electronic form should have their
address updated with their participant or CDC Investor Accounts Service.

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Campany ta pay
cash dividend to its shareholders only thraugh electronic made directly into bank account designated by the
entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividends directl o their bank account, sharehalders are requested to fill in Electronic

Credit Mandate Form available on Cempany's website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC ta the
Shares Registrar of the Company M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to
shareholder’s broker/participant/CDC account services. Na further action Is required if IBAN has already been
incorporated/updated in the CDC account ar physical folio of the shareholder.

Pursuant to Notification vide SRO.787(1)/2014 of September 08, 2014, SECP has directed to facllitate the
members of the company receiving Annual Financial Statements and Notices through electronic mail system
{e-mail). We are pleased ta offer this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual Financial
Statements and Notices of the Company through e-mail in future. In this respect members are hereby
requested to convey their consent via e-mail on a standard request form which is available at the Company
website i.e. www.internationalknitwear.com. Please ensure that your e-mail has sufficient rights and space
available to receive such e-mail which may be larger than 1MB file in size. Further, it is the responsibility of the
member to timely update the Shares Registrar of any change in the registered e-mail address.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

10.

(U]

(in)

(i)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act, 2019 effective July 1, 2019, the rates of deduction  of
income tax from dividend payments under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 havebeen
revised as follows:

1. Persons appearing in Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 15%
2. Persons not appearing in Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 30%

To enable the Company to maketax deduction an the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of
308, shareholders whose names are not entered inta the Active Taxpayers List {ATL) provided an the
website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are
entered in ATL before the first day of book closure, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be
deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.

Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax
exemption certificate or stay order from 2 competent court of law is made available to CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, by the first day of Book Closure.

Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withhalding tax will
be determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder({s)
based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding, Proportions
of Principal shareholders and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them (only ifnot already provided)
to our Shares Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal shareholder Joint Shareholder
Company | Falio/CDS
Name Ac::unt ;:::5 Name & Sharaholding Name & Shareholding
CNIC No, Probortion CNIC No, Pechortion
{no. of Shares) {no. of Shares)

The required Information must reach our Shares Registrar within 10 days of this notice; otherwise it will be

assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint-halder(s).
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

11. Pursuant to the provision of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the companies arepermitted to
circulatetheir annual financial statement, along with auditor’s report,directors’ review report, etc.("Annual
Report”) and the notice of annual general meeting(“Notice”},to its sharehalder by email. Sharehalders of the
Company who wish to receivethe Company’s Annual Report and Notices of annual general meeting by email
are requested to provide the completed Electronic Communication Consent From (available onthe
Company's Website) to the Company’s Share Registrar.

12. The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 have been placed at the
Company's website www.internationalknitwear.com.

13. Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company's website i.e.,
www.internationalknitwear.com.

14. Members are requested to promptly notify to the Company’s Share Registrar of any change in their
addresses.
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| REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

1 am privileged to present the Annual Report together with the auditad Financial Statements for the
Financial Year ended Juns 30, 2020, to the stakeholders of Intemational Knitwaar Limitad (INKL) and to
share the Board's performance in guiding the Campany towards the achievement of its strategic goals
and objectives.

As raquirad under the Listed Companies (Coda of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2018 an annual
evaluation of the Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited is carried oul. The purpese of this
evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is measured and
benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company.

Business Performance

The Financial Year 2018-20 was a very difficull year warld aver and in Pakistan due to the COVID-19
pandemic. Global and local business envirenment remained highly chaillenging, with the impact of
COVID-18 spraading across the whole world within weeks. Itis still too early to fully evaluate the
ecanomic, social and polilical impact of the pandemic that has already claimed hundreds of thousands of
lives across the globe and paralyzed the world econamy.

Board Performance

The Board plays an important role in overseeing the management performance and focusing on major
risk areas. The Board was fully involved in the budgsting and strategic planning process and has set-up
well defined Gorporate Govemance processes, which are vilal for enhancing corporate accountability. All
Directors, including Independent Directors, fully participate and contribute to the decision-making process
of the Board.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2020, the Board's overall performance and effectiveness has been
assessed as Satisfactory. Improvements are an ongoing process leading to sction plans. The above
overall assessment is based on an evaluation of integral components, including visien, mission and

values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the organization's business
acuvllle monitor financial resource management; effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all
employess and efficiency in carrying out the Board's responsibility.

The Board of Directors of your Company received agendas and supporting written material including
follew up matarials in sufficient time prior to the board and its committee meetings. The board meets
frequently enough to adequataly discharge its responsibilities. Tha non-exacutive and indspendant
directors are equally invalved in important decisions.

Appreciation of Team Efforts

On bahalf of the Board, | would like to express gratitude to our stakeholders for their continued supj
and encouragement and acknowledge with thanks the contributions made by the employees of the
Company. | also acknowledge the commitment and diligence of my fallow Directors during the year under
review and thank our Chief Executive Officer and his team for their concerted efforts.

vl
Karachi WASEEM SHAFI
rachi: L
Dated: October 01, 2020 Chairman

10
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Assalam o Alaikum

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited takes pleasure in presenting this report together with the
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Financial Position at a Glance

2020 2019 Increase/f(Decrease)
Rupees Rupees Percentage
Net sales 537,457,423 451,098,967 19.14%
Gross profit 51,287,652 32,105,797 59.75%
Profit before taxation 16,865,217 14,748,652 14.35%
Profit after taxation 7,735,146 10,237,662 {24.44%)
Net earnings per share 0.80 1.06 (24.44%)

Business overview
Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2020 are summarized below:

In the year ending June 30, 2020 business grew about 19.14%.The Company has achieved Net sales of Rs. 537.45
million as compared to Rs.451.09 million. Profit before taxation was 16.86 million as compared to Rs. 14.74 million
far the carresponding periad last year.

Sales recorded an increase of Rs.86.35 million in the current year as compared to sales in the previous year ended
30, June 2019. Gross profit of the Company was Rs.51.28 million in the current year as compared to grass profit of
Rs.32.10 million of the last vear.

Sales

The Campany perfarmed very well during the nine months ended March 31, 2020, The turnover of the company
for the nine months registered an increase of 42.62% or by Rupees 148.03 million as compared with the
corresponding period figure of last year.

The Coronavirus is having an extremely negative impact on the global economy including that of Pakistan. The
country's textile industry is highly distressed over adverse impacts of COVID-19 outhreak as foreign buyers have
started cancellation and deferral of export orders. Due to the drastic slowdown of domestic as well as
international markets and the cancellation of export orders, the turnover of the fourth quarter amounted to Rs,
42.14 million as compared to Rs. 102,82 million for the corresponding period last year.

As other countries worldwide, including Pakistan, impose lockdowns to prevent the spread of the pandemic,
Pakistan’s textile sector is facing delays and cancelation of orders, leaving the capacities unutilized. This has also led
to operations loss, exchange losses and inventory losses due to unnecessary inventory buildup which is leading to
liquidity challenges for the sector along with a massive hit on revenues and margins.

11
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| DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Despite these challenges the Directors of the company are determined to improve plant operations with an
emphasis on diversification, commercial operatiens, efficient procurement of raw material and financial
management.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxation is Rs. 0.80 as compared to Rs. 1.06 in the |ast year earnings for the sharehalders.

Other Income

In other income the company realized and unrealized loss of Rs. 0.23 million against loss of Rs.2.16 million in the
corresponding period last year. Dividend income during the year was Rs. 1.39 million against Rs. 1.42 million
against the corresponding period last year.

During the year under review the cempany has an Exchange loss of Rs. 1.75 against gain of Rs.5.78 million as
compare in the previous year.

Capital Expenditure

The Company during the year made capital investment of Rs. 8.46 million for expanding manufacturing capacity,
enhancing productivity and improving plant efficiency.

Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to announce a final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020 at 5% i.e.
Re.0.50 per share {2019 Re. 0.50) in its meeting held on October 01, 2020.

Communication

The Company is focused on the importance of communication with the shareholders. The annual, half yearly and
quarterly reports are distributed within the time specified in the Companies Act 2017. The activities of the
Company are updated on its website at www.internationalknitwear.com in a designated section for investors
containing relevant information on timely basis.

Material Changes

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial pesition of the Company has occurred between the
end of the financial year of the Company and the date of the report.

Corporate Environment, Health & Sacial Responsibility

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to ensure the
well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate.

Our focus remains on improving all aspects of safety especially with regards to the safe, productian, delivery,
storage and handling of the materials. The company is committed to ensuring environmental preservation and
sustainability .

Materiality Approach

Determining materiality levels is subjective and the methodology varies from one organization to the other.
Authorization far transactions and delegation of powers have been clearly difined and documented through

formalized processes in the Company. The Company has an approved materiality policy which is reviewed
annually to confirm its relevance.

12
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| DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Summary of key operating and financial data of six years at a glance

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the financial results for the

year under review:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
000"

ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and

35,942 32,134 25,728 23,704 26,850 20,085
equipment
Intangible assets 5 i - -
Long-term investments 14,478 17,769 42,052 35,183 75,600 42,677
Long-term deposits 2,052 2,052 1,500 1,500 2,006 1,500
Short-term investments 8,506 4,177 26,228 74,847 - -
Net current assets 72,410 70,898 65,192 74,721 17,630 26,631
Total assets employed 133,388 127,030 160,700 209,975 122,086 90,904
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and paid

96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 64,500 64,500
up capital

“Reserve and un appropriated

28,020 28,763 23,362 4,359 17,864 14,548

profit
TGain / (Loss) on revaluation
(982} (4,003} 14,360 25,701 38,043 11,856
of investments
Sharehalder's equity 123,788 121,509 134,473 126810 120,407 90,904
Long term and deferred
1,651 2,048 - 1,679

liabilities
Total capital employed 125,439 123,557 134,473 126,810 122,086 90,904
Turnover 537,457 451,098 393,230 169,496 182,672 184,118
Frofit/{loss) before tax 16,865 14,748 17,337 3,799 11,626 11,639
Profit/(loss) after tax 7,735 10,237 13,404 2,152 9,766 9,798
Earnings per share, 0.80 1.06 1.39 0.25 1.52 2.05
Net income % 1.4% 2.3% 3.4% 1.3% 5.3% 5.3%
Return on capital employed 5.8% 2.1% 8.3% 1.0% 8.0% 10.8%
Dividend
Cash (%) 5% 5% 5% 0% 10% 10%
Stock (%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

13
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Compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance as per clause XVI of Code of Corporate Governance
The Board is pleased to state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best practices of
Corparate Governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of the corporate and financial
reporting framework and thus states that:

+ The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

¢ The Company has maintained proper books of account.

«  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

¢ International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements.

+  There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in the
Book Pakistan Stock Exchange.

+  The system of internal centrol is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
The process of monitoring internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with the abjective to
further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.

*  Thereis no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

+ Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the accounts.

Chairman's Review

The Chairman’s review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the performance and effectiveness of
the Board, performance of the Company for the year ended lune 30, 2020 and future prospects. The Directars
endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review.

Board of Directors and its Committees

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of two executive and five non-executive directors. All the Directors keenly take interest in
the proper stewardship of the Company's affairs. The non-executive directors are independent of the
management of the Company.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in discharging their responsibilities in accordance with the
Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting frame work.

The Committee consists of three members all of whom are non-executive directors. The Chairperson of the
Committee is an independent director.

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) attended all the four meetings hald during the year
by invitation,

14
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee also assists the Board of Directors In discharging their
responsibilities with regard to devising and periodic reviews of human resource policies and practices within the
Company. It also assists the Board In selection, evaluation, compensation and succession planning of key
management personnel

The Committee consists of three members all of whom are non-executive directors. The Chairperson of the
Committee is an independent director.

Meeting of the Board and its Committees
During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors (BOD), four meetings of Audit Committee (AC) and one

meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) were held. The attendance of the Directors
and the number of their directorship in listed companies, including International Knitwear Limited, is as follows:

Executh ra

Sr. Name of Directors Directorship Status

No. AC HRR BOD AC

1 Mr. Waseem Shafi 1 Re-glected | No - - 4/4 -
w.e.f 27-10
2018

2 Mr. Nasem Shafi 3 Re-elected | Yes = - a/a -
w.ef27-
10-2018

a Mr. Javed Khan 1 Re-elected | Yes - - 4/4 -
w.e.f27-
10-2018

4 Mr. Muhammad Shafi 1 Re-elected | No ] + a/4 =
w.ef27-
10-2018

11

B Mr. Muhammad 1 Re-elected | No ¥ ¥ 3/4 3/4
Sajid Hussain w.ef 27-
10-2018

1

6 Mr_Mudassir Habib Khan 1 Appainted | No 3 - aja aja
on 27-10-
2018

7 | Ms. Salena Majid 1 Appointed | No N N am | am
on 27-10-
2018

171

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises of senior management headed by Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), who
ensures that a proper system is developed and implemented acrass the Company that enable swift and
appropriste decision making. It acts In an advisory capacity ta CEQ at the operating level, providing
recommendations relating ta business and other corporate affairs. It is responsible for reviewing and forwarding
long-term plans, capital and expense budget development and stewardship of business plans, The Committee is
organized on a functional basis and meets monthly to review the performance of each function against set targets.
CEO also ensures that all decisions and directions given by the Board are properly communicated and
implemented.

15
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Perfarmance of Board of and Cc of the Board

The evaluation af Baard's rale of oversight and its effectiveness is continual process, which is appraised by the
Board itself. The core areas of focus are:

Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of the Company;
Strategy formulation for sustainable operation;

Board’s independence; and

Evaluation of Board's Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set out in

respective terms of reference.
Review of CEO's Performance

The performance of the CEQ is formally appraised through the evaluation system which is based on quantitative
and qualitative values. Each year the Board establishes a list of goals and strategies aligned to achieve the mission
of the Company. Each milestane is thus measured in order to assess performance. [t includes the performance of
the business, the accomplishment of objectives with reference to profits, organization building, succession
planning and corporate success.

Role of Chairman and CEQ

Chairman acts as the custodian of the Company an behalf of the Board and stakeholders. He heads the

Board of Directors and is responsible for ensuring the Board's effectiveness. The chairman ensures the
developrment of business and protection of goodwill of the Company. He also ensures the balance of membership
of the Baard In terms of versatile exposure to varlous husiness operations and achievament of the Campany's
vision, mission and its long term goals. He acts as a link between the Board and management of the Company and
communicates with the Board on behalf of the management.

The CEO is respansible for day to day management of the Company’s affairs and execution of long term strategy,
plans and budgets to increase shareholders’ value.CEO also represents the Company to shareholders, government
authorities and the public. He is the leader and decision maker who motivates employees, drives change within
the Company and takes decisions to achieve targets,

Diractors’ Remuneration

The remuneratian of the Board members is appraved by the Board itself. However, In accordance with the Code
of Corporate Governance, it ks ensured that na Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration. The
Company does not pay remuneration to hon-executive directors except fee for attending the meeting. In order to
retain the best talent, the Company’s remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing industry trends
and business practices. Far infarmation an remuneration of Directors and CEO in 2019-20, please refer notes to
the Financial Statements.

Statutory auditors

The present Auditors RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman Chartered Accountants will retire and offer themselves
for reappaintment the financial year ending June 30, 2021.

Pattern of shareholding

A statament shawing the pattern of sharehalding In the Company and additional infarmation as on June 30, 2020
is annexed ta this report.

There were 1,272 sharehalders on the record of the Company as at 30th June 2020,
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Directors’ Training Program

Two Directors have attended the Directors Training Program and two have minimum of 14 years of education and
15 years of experience on the Board of listed companies and therefore are exempt from the Directors Training
Program. The Company is planning to conduct the Directors Training for the remaining Directors soon.

Future outlook

Recovery has started as businesses and communities have adapted to the new ways of living and conducting
business, but the challenges are far from over. The econemic recovery is slow, and fear of a pandemic’s second
wave is keeping businesses from going forward with their growth and expansion plans.

Acknowledgments

The Board of directors would take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to the efforts of its
employees, and the continuous support of customers, suppliers, and bankers.

For and on behalf of the Board

JAVED KHAN NAEEM SHAF!
Karachi: October 01, 2020 Director / CFO Chief Executive
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The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

Male: 6 (Six)
Female: 1 {(One}

The composition of board is as follows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr. Naeem Shafi
Mr. Javed Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Waseem Shafi

Mr. Muhammad Shafi

Mr. Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mr. Mudassir Habib Khan
Independent Director Ms. Saleha Majid

Female Director Ms. Saleha Majid

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companles, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it threughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The board is doing a reasonable progress to complete record of particulars
af significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a directar
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.
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15.

The Board of Directors have 2 formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Two directors are Certified Director and two directors meet the criteria of exemption and are
accordingly exempted from directors’ training program. Remaining Director will acquire the required
directors’ training certification within the time specified in the Regulations.

The board has approved appointment of CFO and Company Secretary, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
regulations. However, the CFO has also been assigned the responsibilities of the company secretary;
The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant during the year

CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board,

The Board has formed commitiees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Saleha Majid {Chairperson)
Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mudassir Habib Khan

Saleha Majid {Chairperson)
Muhammad Shafi
Muhammad Sajid Hussain

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
2) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2020

b] HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2020

The Board has setup an internal audit function, the staffs are considered suitably experienced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company. whoever, during the
year the internal audit department remained unfunctional because of vacancy in the office of head of
Internal Audit.
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18,

The statutory auditers of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the
company;

The statutery auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed |FAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with; and

Explanation for nan-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,7,8,27,32,33 and 36
are below.

I, The Company is non-compliant of the number of Independent Directors required under the
regulation 6 of the Listed Companies (Code of Carparate Governance) Regulations, 2019,

The requirement to have the representation of number of Independent Directors in the
Company's baard will be complied upon reconstitution of the Board.

1. The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the company secretary.

n. The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required by regulation 31 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

. The board has not maintained the complete record of significant policies as required under the
regulations.

A reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek above compliances by the year end of
next accounting year June 30, 2021.

v b~

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI

Karachi: October 01, 2020 Chairman Chief Executive
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
International Knitwear Limited {the Company} for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Qur responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As 2 part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Diractors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2020.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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S# Paragraph Description
reference

The Company is non-compliant of the number of Independent
L 19(1) Directors required under the regulation 6 of the Listed Companies
{Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the company
I, 1081901) | sacretary.

The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required by
m 15 & 19(11) regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Gavernance) Regulations, 2019.

The board has not maintained the complete record of significant
V. 5&19(1V) policies as required under the regulations.

Sd/-

Engagement Partner: Adnan Zaman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: October 01, 2020
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of International Knitwear Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting palicies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the profit and other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

S. No.

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

1.

Revenue
(Refer note 20 1o the financial
statements)

The Company generates revenue from
sale to export as well as local customers.
We considered revenue recognition as
key audit matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators and because of
the potential risk that revenue may not
be recorded in the appropriate period.

Our audit procedures included the
following:

-Obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls.

-Performed test of details on a
sample basis  with underlying
documentations by inspecting and
comparing customer orders, delivery
challans, bill of lading (in case of
export sales), invoices and other
related documents.

-Compared sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the
year end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documentation to  ensure  that
revenue pertains to the appropriate
accounting period.

-Ensured the adequacy of
disclosures in  accordance  with
applicable financial reparting
standards and the Companies Act,
2017.

Stock in trade
(Refer note Sto the financial statements)

Due to the significance of inventory
balances and related estimations
involved, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the
following:

-Obtained an understanding of
internal controls over purchases and
valuation of stock in trade and tested,
on a sample basis, their design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness.

-Attended virtual inventory counts
performed by the Company.
-Obtained and reviewed the inventory
count report of the management and
assessedils accuracy on a sample
basis
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-Ensuring that proper provision has
been made for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged inventory or items
selling below cost.

-Perfarmed NRV test to ensure that
the inventory is valued at lower of
costand NRV.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's reports thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cannection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nathing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative
but te do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

-Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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-Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude fhat a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

-Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements ragarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We desctibe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or requlation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017} and are in agreement with the books of account and retumns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Adnan
Zaman.

Sd/-

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: October 01, 2020

28




<5 Inrernational Knitwear Limited

| BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30,2020

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets.

Property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

Long term loan

Long term investments

Current Assets.

Stock in trade

Short term investments

Trade debts - considered good
Leans and advances

Other receivables

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital
Revenue Reserves

Unappropriated profit

Capital Reserves
Unrealized (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments - FVTOCI

Non-Current Liabilities
Long term liability against assets subject to finance lease

Current Liabilities

Short term finance under mark-up arrangement

Current maturity of liability against assets subjects to finance lease
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Contingencies and Commitments
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
6 35,942,893 32,134,519
7 2,052,600 2,052,600
11 556,000 703,000
8 14,478,781 17,769,756
53,030,274 52,659,875
3 160,126,086 120,400,006
8 8,506,201 4,177,071
10 29,420,504 54,580,348
21 4,559,014 4,050,811
12 33,089,225 18,882,741
18 22,410,808 21,607,985
12 885,322 2,682,797
258,897,261 226,381,759
312,027,536 279,041,635
24 96,750,000 96,750,000
28,020,988 28,763,003
124,770,988 125,513,003
(982,430} (4,003,372)
123,788,498 121,509,631
15 1,651,865 2,048,904
16 82,058,581 69,159,154
15 419,987 401,891
7 102,377,977 84,398,930
1,730,629 1,523,125
186,587,173 155,483,100
19 - =
312,027,536 279,041,635

The annexed notes 1 1o 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Y yUV“ﬁO

FE

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive

Director / CFO

IAVED KHAN
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| STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

Net sales 20 537,457,423 451,098,967
Cost of goods sold 21 (486,169,771) {418,993,170)
Graoss profit 51,287,652 32,105,797
Administrative and selling expenses 22 {21,458,557) (21,776,647)
Operating profit 29,829,085 10,328,151
Other income 2 | 2,179,917 | 11,129,178
Unrealized {loss) on revaluation of investments through P&L {589,705 (424,559)
1,590,212 10,704,619

31,419,307 21,033,770

Finance cast 24 (13,304,144) (5,192,038)
Other charges 25 {1,249,9485) {1,093,080)
(14,554,090) (6,285,118)

Profit before taxation 16,865,217 14,748,652
Tavation 18 (8,130,071 (4,510,390)
Profit after taxation 7,735,146 10,237,662
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 27 0.80 1.06

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.

1%

il

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive
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| STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation for the year 7,735,146 10,237,662
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be sub ly reclassified to of profit or
loss
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investments classified as FYTOC! {2,040,503) (313,919)
Redlassification of OCl component on disposal of FYTOC! investment
‘ < : 1,421,724 {18,045,717)

directly into equity

(618,779) (18,363,635)
Total comprehensive {loss) / income for the year 7,116,367 (8,125,973)

The annexed notes I to 38 form an Integrol part of these financial statements,

.

'Ova‘% R e

WASEEM SHAFI INAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director | CFO
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| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

B T ——
--Capital Reserve-- --Revenue Reserve--

Issued, Subscribed  Unrealized gain /

andPaidup share  (Joss)on revaluarion  UnPPropriated Total
Cagital of Investmants L
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2018 96,750,000 14,360,264 23,362,341 134,473,105
Tatal comprehensive income:
Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2019 - - 10,237,562 10,237,562
Reclassification on dispasal of FVTOC diveetly into equity - (18,049,717} - na,ms,;r.-;
Fair walue adjustment an invastment classified as FVTOCI . (313,319} . (313,918)
mme vear ended lune 30, 2018 - - (4,837,500} (4,837,500)
Balance as at July 01, 2019 96,750,000 (4,003,372) 28,763,003 121,509,631
Tatal comprehensive income:
Net profit for the year ended June 30,2020 . . 7,735,146 7,735,146
Reclassification an dispasal of FVTOU divectly into equity - (2,040,503 - (2,040,503)
Fair value adjustment an investment classified as FVTOCI . 1421,224 - 1421724
Unrealized loss realized and transfer of FUTOCH = 3,639,661 (2.639,661) -
rith
5% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2013 - - (4,837,500} (4,837.500)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 750, {982,430) 28,020,988 123,788,438

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integrol port of these financiol stotements,

% i

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director | CFO
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| STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTI
Prafit hefare taxation 16,865,217 14,748,652
Adjustment for non cash items:
Depraciation 4,512,229 3,548,790
(Gain}/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {12,698)) 6,209
Other income (350,644}, 1,744,443
Finance cost 13,304,144 5,192,037
17,453,031 10,892,479
Profit before changes in warking capital 34,318,248 25,641,131
Increase in current assets
Stock in trade (39,726,080) (68,780,657)
Trade debrs 25,159,844 14,729,782
Loans and sdvances (361,203} (2,287,444)
Other recelvables (14,206,484 (7.609,231
(25,133,923) (64,947,500}
Increase in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other payables 17,979,047 9,432 034
17,979,047 9,432,034
Financial charges paid (12,304,144 (5,192,027),
Taxes pai {12,664,453) (7,888,252).
Cash proceed from Income tax 2,686,108 3
Net cash used in operating activities (118,1185) (42,954,714)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (5,601,905}, (7,736,021}
Additons in investment (133,571,252 (81,740,898)
Dispasal of Investment 132,530,399 88,846,777
Praceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment 160,000 137,000
Long term deposits - (552,600)!
Finance lease rental paid (378,943 (312,205
Net cash used in investing activities (9,861,702) {1,357,8a47)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds from short term finance under markup arrangement 223,693,024 183,586,681
Repayment of short term finance under markup arrangement {210,971,770) {139,537,159),
Dividend paid (4,629,997 (4,630,198)
Net cash generated from financing activities 8,097,258 45,418,324
Nat (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash aquivalents (1,883,561) 1,106,663
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the year (3,226,835) (4,333 498)
Cash and cash aquivalents at the end of the year a8 (5,110,396 (2,226,835
The annexed notes 110 38 form an integial part of these financial statements.
.
WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director | CFO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

3.

34

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS.
International Knitwear Limited (hereinafter referred as the "Company’ or "IKL") is Incarporated in Pakistan and is listed an Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The gzographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company is Plot # F-24/L, SITE,
Karachi, Pakistan.

We are leaclers in creating. developing and manufacturing knitted and wowen apparel procucts right from basic to highly fashioned
garmants. We are engaged In the export of quality garments, We have astablished a nama of credantials owing to the projected
commitments, working speed and quality practices. Our operating philosophy is to provide buyers with products that meet their
specification, and are reliably delivered at a reasanable prics In domestic and international markets.

IMPACT OF COVID - 19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Asin the rest of the world, COVID-19 adversely affectad lifastyles and business opsrations in Pakistan. Tha Company complisd with the SOPs
prescribed by Federal and Provincial Governments. Szles 2nd production activities were affected during lockdowns, however, the factory
reopened after necessary permissions 10 produce orders for exports and local services. The Company remained up to date n all its financial

The that the going concern assumption of the Company remains valid.

The evalution of COVID-19 as well as its impact on the globzl and the local economy is hard predict at this stage. As of the release date of
thes= financizl statements, there has been na specifically material quantifiable impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations.
The Company awziled employee refinance facility for payment of salaries and wages under SBP's infrastructure, Housing & SME Finance
department (IH&SMEFD) Circular No. 6 af 2020 dated April 10, 2020
BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan,
The accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of :
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {1458] as nofified under
the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Proviglons of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Campanies Act, 2017 have been fallowed
3.2 Basisol measurement
These financial statements have bean prapared uncer the historical cost convention except as stated atharwise in these financial
statements.
33 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company's functional currency. All the financial information
presented in Pakistani Rupee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.
34 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements In confarmity with International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires the use of
certaln accounting estimates. It lsa requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas invelving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are as follows:
Classification of financial instruments; [note 5.2
Provision far impairment; {note 5.4]
Waluation of work In process; {note 5.8} and
Provision for obsolete inventory; {note 5.10}
Taxation; {nate 5.13)
Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment. {note 5.7 and &)
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other facters, including
expectations of future avents that are belleved to be reasonable under the eircumstances
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)

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a1

New or ! to . Interpratations

There are new and smended standards and that are v for periads beginning 1 July 2013 ather

thar thass disclosed In note 5.1, are considered Nt t b relevant ar do not have any significant effect on the Company's financial
and tatad in thase

standards and that Vet eftective

The fallowing to the spproved i licable in Pakistan, would be effective from the
dates mentioned below against the respective standards and Interpretation hawe ot been adopted eary by the Company:

Effective from
accounting period

Standard or Interpretatian Beginning an or
after:

Presentation of Financlal Statements K Accounfing Policies, Changes In Accounting  January 1, 2020

AS18 Estimates and Errors: Defiition of Material, ta clarify the defidon of material and its

il slEnment with the defiition used in the Concaptus) Framewsrk {amendments]

1ns1 Presentation of Financial Statements t darify how to classify debt and other liabilities as  January 1, 2022
current ar non-current.

PRS2 Busingss combinations to clarify the defiition of businss The amendment updates 3 January 1, 2020
reference In IFRS 310 the Conceprual Framewark for Financial Reparnng without changing
the GCCOURLIAG FequIremEnts for business ComBINATIGNS.

IFRS 4 Insurance contracts ta clarify extensian of the Temparary Exemprion fram Apglying IFRS S January 1, 2023
dafers the fied expiry date of the following temporary exemptions from applying IFRS 9 to
annual periods bey ng on or after January 01, 2023

IFRSS Financial Instruments to clarify the requirements for hedge accounting io support the January 1,2020
prowision of useful fiancial nformation dunng the penod of uncertainty caused by the
phasing out of interest-rate benchmarks such as interbank offered rates {IBORs) an hedge
accounting.

IFRS 10 & & Finaneial EY in Assaciates and laint Ventures - Sale ar  Not yet falized

145 28 Contributian of Assets etween an Investor and its Associate o Joint Venturs — (Amendmant)

145 16 Property, plant and equi o clan ion on an encity from daducting fromtha  Ol-jan-22
<cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that aset ta the locston and cohdifion necessary far it ta be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an enfity recognizes the
proceeds fram selling such items, and the cost of producing those iterms, in prafi or loss.

1A5 37 Provisions, contingent lishilines and :Dl\'ﬂu;en( assets 1o spaclfy which costs should be  OLfan-22
included in an entity's ether

The sbove new to standards and ik Sapeked b vy IR TS B B GO

fangial stztements in the periad of inital application

1 addition ta the above new standards and to standard and interp: . The 1ASB has also issued the revised

Conceptual Framewerk for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual 2020 for preparers of fiancial statzments who develop accounting
policies hased on the Conceptual Framework, The revised Conceptual Framewerk is not a standard, and none of the concepts
Guerride those in any Standard of any requirements in 3 standard. The purpase of the Canceptual Framewark is ta Assist 1ASA in
developing standards, to halp preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to
sssist all parties to undarstand and Interpret the standa

5.

In addition ta the above new standards and amendments to standard and Interpretations, The IASE has also issued the revised
Coneeptual Framework for Financial Reporting {the Conceptual 2020 for praparers of fancial statements who develsp accounting
polic improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the IASE in May 2020. Such improvements are
generally effective far accounting periods beginning an or after 01 January 2020, The Company expacts that such Improvements tm
the standards will nat have any material impact an the Company's flancial stataments in the periad of initial aplicatian.

Further, the follawing new standards have been issued by 1ASE which are yet to be natifid by the Securities and Exchangs
Commission of Pakistan {SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

1458 affactiva data

(annual periods

Standard

beginning on or
IFRS 1 - Firsttime adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards. D1-1ul-08
IFRS17 - Insuranes Contracts a1-1an-23

The Campany expects that the adoprion of the abaove revision, amendments and nterpretation of the standards will not afiect the
Coempany's fiancial statements in the peried af al application,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except as described below in note 5.1, the significant accounting polidies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial

statements are the same as those applied in earlier periads presentec.

51  Changesin significant accounting policies
The Company has adepted IFRS 16 'Leases’ from 01 July 2019 which is effective from annual perieds beginning on or after 01
January 2018 and the key changes to the Company's accounting policies rasulting from adoption of IFRS 16 are summarized below:
IFRS 16 'Leases’
IFRS 16 has introduced 2 single, on-balance sheet accounting model for lessees. As a rasult, the entity, as a lessee has recognized
right-of-use asset reprasenting its rights to use tha underlinad assets and lease liabilities representing its obligation to make lease
payments.
The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach the comparative information
presented for 2018 has not been restated - 1.2. it is presented, as previously reported, under |AS 17 and related interpratations, The
details of the changes in accounting policies arz disclosed below.
A contract s, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The entity recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date, The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any,
and adjusted for certaln remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method
over the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis
as that for awned assets, In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically raduced by impairment losses, if any
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discountad using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate. The lease hability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decraased by lease
payments mace. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a
change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or 2 termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exerdised.
The Company did not have any property leases arrangement therefore, adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 did not have an effect on
the financial statements of the Company except the reclassification of leased assets as Right-of-use assets {refer note 6,3).

52 FinancialInstruments
Initial measurement of financial asset
The Company classifies its financial assets into fallowing three categaries:
- fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FYOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FUTPL); and
- measured at amortised cost,
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
arquisition,
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Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in income statement,

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amartised cast using the effective interest

amortised cost methad, The amartised cost is reduced by impairment losses {ses {ii} below). Interest /

markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
income statement.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, interest / markup income calculated
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC| are reclassified toincome statement.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as Income

Fvact in Incame statement Unless the dividand elearly represents a recavery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other nat gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified
toincome statement.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets are deracognised when the rights to receive cash flows fram the assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Company has transterred
Naon-derivative financial assets
All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date Le. date on which the Company becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise leans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and Includes long term loans, accruals, prepayments, advances and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derscognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows In a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

53  Regularway contracts
All purchases and sales of securitiss that require delivery within the time frame astablished by regulation or market convention
such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the assets.

54 Impairment
Financial assets.
The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses {ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured st amortised cost,
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances which
are measured at 12 months expected credit lasses. Sinca thase assats are shart term in natura, therefore no cradit lass is expected
on these balances.
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewied at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If such indication exlsts, the asset's recoverable amount, belng higher of value in use and fair value
less costs ta sell, is astimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their prasent valua using
@ pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
the purpose of impairment tasting, assets that cznnat be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assels.
An Impalrment l0ss is recognised whenever the tarrying amaunt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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55 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the company becomes party to the respective contractual
provisions. Financial lizbilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the
financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability other than at fair value
through profit or oss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost, Subsequent to initial
recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method,

5.6 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company Intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and to settle the lisbilities simultaneously. Incame and axpense itams of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net
amount is reparted in the nancial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan,

57 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equiprnent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciatioh is charged, from the month when the asset is avallablz for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, to profit and
loss account applying the straight-line method.
Malntenance and repairs are charged ta profit and loss account as and when Incurred. Major renewals and impravements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. The rasidual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
Gains and losses arising on dispasal of praperty, plant and equipment are taken ta profit and loss accaunt in the year of disposal.

58 Assets subject to finance lease

5.8.1  Policy applicable before 1 July 2019
Leases are dassified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Company. All ather leases are dassified as operating leases.
Assets held under finance leases alang with corresponding |ease liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
casts and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liahility. Finance
costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

5.8.2  Policy applicable after 1 July 2019
A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for cansideration. The entity recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencemeant date, The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and sub: Iy at cost less any and i losses if any,
and adjusted for certaln remeasurements of the lease liability, The right-of-use asset is depraciated using the straight line mathod
over the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life . The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis
as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is pariodically reduced by impairment losses, If any.
The lease liahility is initially measured at the present value af the lease payments that ara not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease o, if that rate cannot be readily determinad, the entity's incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost un the lease liability and decreased by lease
payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a
change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably
certaln not to be exercised.
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5.9 Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred on
property, plant and equipment in the course of construction, These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property,
plant and equipment as and when the assets start operation.
510  Stock-in-Trade
{3} Raw, packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cost calculated on a first-in-first-out basis and net realizable
value.
{b)  Worlkin process is valued at material cost plus estimated conversion cost.
(e} Finished goads are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value {NRV). NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.
(d)  Stock-in-transitis valued at cost comprising invaice value plus other charges incurred thereon,
511  Staff Retirement Benefits
The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for eligible employees. Equal contributions are
made to the fund by the Company and the employees at the rate of 833 % of basic salary.

512  Compensated Absences
The Company has a palicy to provide for compensated absences for all employees in accordance with the rules of the Company.
513  Taxation
Current
Provision far current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime, of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Income not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime.
Deferred
Deferred tax Is provided using the balance sheet liability methed, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts
of assats and liabllities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, The amount of deferred tax
provided is hased on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the halance sheet date. However due to application of final tax basis of taxation, deferred taxation would not arise.
514  Borrowing Casts
Borrowing costs are racognized as expense in the peried in which they are incurred, excspt to the axtent that thay are directly
attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part of the cast of that particular asset.

515  Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or canstructive obligation as a result of past events, when itis
prohable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

516  Foreign Currencies Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for In Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and labilities in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are expressed in rupees at rates of exchange
prevailing an that date, Mon monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions, Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.
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517  Revenue Recognition
- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promisad goods to

customer. Goods are transferred when the customer obtains their control (i.2. on dispatch of goods to customers). Revenue is
recognised at transaction price {which excludes estimates of variable consideration).

- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a ime praportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate,

- Gains / {losses) arising on disposal of investments are recognised on the date when the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised gains f (losses) arising on revaluation of securities measured at ‘fair value are included in profit or loss / ather
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

- The aforesaid change in accounting policy did not result in any significant change.

5.18  Balances from contract with customers
Contract assets
A contract asset s the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferrad to the customer. The Company recognizes
a contract assel for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the custamer pays consideration or before payment is due.
Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of ion that is ung Trade bles are carried at
original invoice amount less expected credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amaunts at the year end. Bad debts are
written off when identifed.
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the abligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
from the customer, A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.
Right of return assets
Right of return asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers, The assat is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expectad costs to recover the goods, induding any patential

decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its
expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returmed products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received [or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to raturn to the customer. The Company updates its astimates
of refund liabilities {and the corresponding change in the transaction price] at the end of each reporting period.

519  Cashand Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance
facilities availed by the Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flow,

5.20  Related Party Transactions
All transactions Invelving related parties arlsing in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length at normal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using waluation modas, as admissible, except in
extremely rare dreumstances, where subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it s in the interest of the Company to do so.
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521  Segments Reporting
Identification of segments
Export division
Local division
Basis for allocation for revenue and axpenses:
Revenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable, Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges,
embroidery charges, stitching charges, clearing and forwarding charges, fraight actrai and cartrage expenses are allocated on actual
basis. However, dzpreclation and all other general expenses are allocated on the following basis.
Segment Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation on all assets 60.43% 39.57%
522  Eamingsper share
The Company prasents earnings per share (EPS] data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ardinary sharehalders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
periad.
523  Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and other appropriations are recognized in the
periad in which these are approved by the Board of Directors,
2020 2019
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Operafing assets 6.1 34,059,843 32134519
Capital work in progress 6.2 .
Right-of-use assets 63 1,883,050

35,342,883 32,134,518
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INVESTMENTS

At fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI)
Equity securities - listed

At fair value through profit or lass (FVTPL

Equity secutities - listed
Mutual funds - listed

81 FVTOCI- Equity Securities

Number of Shares
2019

108,601 The Searle Company Ltd.

1,280 Indus Motor Company Ltd

21,000 = Engro Fertilizer Limited
s0 550 Engro Corporation Lid,
37,300 - Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.

1,380 1,150 Pakistan Petroleum Lid.

82  FVTPL- Equity securities

Number of Shares.
2020 2019

20,300 24,215 The Searle Company Ltd.

140 Indus Mator Campany Ltd

3,000 - Oil & Gas Development Company Ltd
1,500 - Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.
15,900 - Bakistan State Ol Co. Ltd

8.2.1 FUTPL- Mutual Funds
Number of Units

2020 2019
- 6,963 COC - Trustes AKD Opportunity Fund
8,550 - AKD tslamic Fund
6,576 - UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

81

82
822

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
14,478,781 17,769,756
7,412,058 3,717,501
1,094,242 453,570

21,946,826

15,916,554
1,541,018
1,265,880
14,646 146,080
13,078,499
119,756 166,005

14,478,781 17,769,756

4,044 369 3,548,952
168,549
327,000 -
525,945 -
2,514,744 s

7,412,058 3,717,501

- 459,570
431,287 e
662,956

1,004,243 453,570
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10.

11,

STOCK IN TRADE Note
Raw material

Werk-in-process

Finished goads 2.1

Finished goods
Finished stack

Finished stack in transit
Scrap / Left over stock

The finished goods includes laft over stock of Rs 2.67M (2019: 2.77 M) recarded at NRV.
TRADE DEETS - CONSIDERED GOOD

Forelgn - secured, considered good
Gain on translation of export debtors

Lacal - unsecured
- Considered gond
- Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for bad debts 101
10.2

10.1 iliation of provision for i of trade debts

Opening pravision
Brovision for the year
feversal of provision

102 Age analysis of trade debts Is as follows:
Mot yet dua
Past dus
- Dto3 months
- 3to6months
- 61012 months
- Above 12 months

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Leanto Lohg t rtion - Unsecured, good

Loan to employees 111
Less: currant portion of loan to employses

Short term Advances - unsecured, considered gaod
Advance to contractor and supplier

Currant partion of advancas to employaes
Prepayments

2020 2013

Rupees Rupees
28,613,718 26,710,382
46,308,773 59,404,553
24,203,595 34,285,071

74,933,342 20,781,706
3,534,308 10,724,605
5,735,345 2,778,760

84,203,595 34,285,071

- 38,330,880
- 5,313,961
- 43,704,341
29,420,504 10,875,507
1,211,162 1,236,162
0,631,666 12,111,669
(1,211,162) (1,236,162}
29,420,504 54,580,348
1,236,162 1,286,162
(25,000) (50,000}
236,162
29,420,504 51,044,447
- 3,535,901
29,420,504 54,580,348
1,692,000 1,267,500
— (1,136,000) {564,500}
556,000 703,000
3,325.884 3422711

564,500
63,600

111 The unsecured loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of employment. Loans are recoverable in
manthly installments over a period ranging between 3 to 5 years and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at June

30, 2020 pertains to a period between 1- 2 years

45




<5 Iniernational Knitwear Limited

| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
12.  OTHER RECEIVABLES
Soles tax refundable 14,131,458 2643021
Export rebate racaivables 1311664 2,501,493
Reszarch and development recelvable 121 17,453,902 13,056,054
Qther receivable 192,191 £82,173
33,089,205 18,882,741
123 Aceording to the natification number 1(42-8) TID/18 - TR lssued on August 03rd, 2018 The duty drawback under this order shall be allowed for the
shipments made from the July 1st, 2018 to lune 30th, 2021, the Company s eligible to duty drawback on export sales of manufactured products ot
the rate of 4%,
Out of 4%, fifty percent (506] of the rate af drawback is provided without further canditions. But the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the rate of
drawback s provided on achieving 10% increase n exports during the currant year 2018-19 a5 compared to the base year 2017-18 or sxports In
finzncial year 2019-20 a5 compared to financial year 2018-19 or saports in financial yeer 2020-21 38 compared to financial year 2013-20
Howeuer, 35 2 mater of prudence, the Company has recorded the provision only 2% on 100% sales during the currant year.
2020 2018
13.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand - 100,000
With banks in:
- Treasures call accounts {deposit accounts] 131
- Current accounts
2385322 4,082,797
Security deposit 71 11,500,000} {1,500,000
131 Deposit accounts carry profit of 4.5%-6.10% ger annum (2019: 4.5- .10% per annum]
14, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
Number of Shares
2020 2018
20,000,000 70,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each 200,000,000 000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Number of Shares
2020 2018
1,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinaryshares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash. 30,000,000 30,000,000
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each issued as bonus shares 2,250,000 2,250,000
6,450,000 6,450,000 Right shares of Rs, 10/- zach fully paid In cash 64,500,000 4,500,000
9,675,000 9,675,000 96,750,000 96,750,000
15, LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBIECT TO FINANCE LEASE
Up ta ane year 419,987 401,891
Later than one year and not later then five years 1,651,865 2,048,504

2,071,852 2,450,795
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H

19,

T Tore3eT
Winimum Presant Value ot
laesd Sk sk Lt | i Gharass | aainimu Lases
Payments o Payment.
T
Mot ater than one yeor Sis164 e 419,87 S60,788 158897 41,89
Later than ane year bt rat lates
than e yeare 1030667 273,802 1651988 2351988 sazcm2 208,901
2,573,831 501,378 2,071,853 2552774 501,575 2,450,755
153 Tha abiows rosresenis finance laase antared inta wih Bank AL Habb for leasa of metar veh

o Tha liabiliey under the agroament is payable by August
20,2022 In monthly [ataliments sne 1z subjact to annual KIBOR 12042 5%

2020 2012
SHORT TERM FINANCE LINDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENT Hata Rupees Rupees
Running financs faziiive 161 5,995,718 5,909,632
Export refinanca facility w2 50,000,000
Diszount against local L€ 4249522

PATE 2alary and wagss{Cead-19]

[ERLCE

461 Limit Rs 6 millon.
Secured against hyaethecation charge ower stacks and sauitadle mortgage over factory proaerty ot Plot b F-24/L, SITE, Karach amauntng to s 161
millian {2019: s, 184 million] fwith 505 margind, snd flen sver supart docurments and persanal gusrancees of Direciars of the Company. The rate af
mark-up s equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2,5% 0.3 (20181 3 Months WIBOR + 2.5% p.a) The facility is ranewabls and is valid Bl June 30, 2020,

163 Limit Re. 29 milllon.
Secured against bypathecation charge ever stacks and equitable mortgags aver factory property st Plot 4 F-2A/L. SITE, Karachi ameunting ta Rz, 184
millian {2013 &s. 164 millian) (with S6% margin), and flen ver =4part dazuments and personal gusrontees of directars of the Company. The fote of
mark-up 15 qual t 3 mantiss KIBOR 11,03 p.3 (2019: 3 Months KIRDR + 1,05  p,3), The 13511ty 15 rnguisble and I3 valie il Juna 30, 2020,

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER PAVABLES.
Credrars

&8.687,752
Accrued axpenses 9585111
Compensated shsences payable 1,622,458
Othar fund payable 171 487,306
Workers' prafit participation fund 73 733,087
Warkers' weifare fund 2101310
conteact lianility 485,742
Aduance fram others 140,075
Dihars. 235,073
530

173 Other fund payable
Prowident fund 587,452 RETEEES
EQBI payable 6,094 S5
— A87,308

172 Warkers' prafit parsicipation furd

Opening balance 751087 SE11T
Provisian for the year 205,736 855,008

-

(%,130,071) (4.510,430)
——2RM0EE, 20,607,285,
The numerncal recanc isbien Getween the average Lax rate and apalicable tax rate has oot been gresented in these Anancial ststements a5 the total
Ineame af the Company airacts minimurm tax under section 113 of the Ineame Tax Qrdinance, 2001 and 1ts expart sales fall under final tax regima,
CONTINGENCIES AND COMBMITMENTS
Commitments
COMMITMENts Under [4TI8rS Of credit 35 8t JUne 30, 2020 3MoUnted 10 RS, 20,598,241 (2019: 7, 22,210,000).

tax a
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0. NETSALES

Local
mhers

Salas tax Local
Sales Lasathers

28.1:0 Ofhers Inghide serap sales atmaLnBg 10 R NIL (2013 s, 1,792,508}

B

COST OF GOOBS 5010

Raw and packing material consumed
Opening stork.

Clising stock,

Salorfes, alloweneas srd benefits
Provicent fund cantrisuben
Knising charges

Gyeing ard other charges
Exnibrcadary £ PAAnng charges
Sttching charges

Fuel ani parwer

Commur tion

Pestage & telegrams

Repairs &nd malntensivd

Seaff welfare and medizal euperass
Mstar vohlele and convayance
Isurance

Gepretiation

Clearing and farwarding

Frslght, aetrol and eartaga

Expiort develapment oharges
Fattary compliance exparses.
Cormmizsian on Sales tawmcome Tax refurd
Traveling expenses

Others

Workin-grocess
Opening stork:

Clesing stod.

Cost of goods manufactured
Finshed goods

Operireg stock,
Clasing stodk:

COST OF GOODS 5010

438

Hote

204

PLER]

EXPORT TocAL ToTAL

7020 7019 7000 7018 030 7018
Rupaes.

208,674,271 376,708,238 2 306,674,121 76,708,338

3 i 214,390,243 6456624 218,180,343 868,624

15,214 886) 11,703.232) (781.325) 15,214,888) (12,470,557)

3503507 2874719 - - 3,503,607 2674719

18731512 7565,517 - 29,71 612 7,685,917

{L477,374) {542,074} - - 11,421.274) {548,074)

PO T 5 D 1 TN T CE N T ST.Y ¢ Y M - Y Y1 W 1YY

. - 234,434,340 69,593,384 734,434,349 583,
15,179,526 13307185 15,178,838 13,853,188
- - a7 E186172 20624177 01,336,172
- - 3927305 5746251 3,727 305 5,746,291
. - 2695525 781,256 5865 781,256
- - 36433634 6517548 36423934 6517548
= = 7

et

22,003,832 2452778 4506450 737067 26,710,380 15 843,885
1se0seAYs 215017084 104704520 43635250 262,831 464 258,656,385
1711904 (22,203 972 11500814 (2,505,500 (29,513,729 (26,710,303
I6ABET 201,505,042 SR | 46503515 259,928,128 27,609,856
FE551715 5503 655 T 305,773 ETRITEC 2,705,357
as5.408 52,847 63207 173,050 1,588,542 1025927
4227359 7,385,357 2600 1490822 7,02837) 8,648,174
50,756,555 55,760,734 B B 81,435,739 s2077,81
6,425,070 257,024 1308277 10,662,154 7,760,272
8175122 aet0216 | 10386279 61,572,830
2,529,268 1682468 a0 s 4,221,737 41880
2man 150524 568635 m 35801
98024 810 245,385 5305
1061136 2550 2,662,908 147918
2614 22,608 157,140 134,005
20,46 7720 2,058,508 1,764,628
150,149 61487 aman 264,105
03751 377756 2,356,817 2,230,209
A . 3,053,507 5022350
5005553 397311 12,560,180 18,543,641
: 51,232 976,855
200374 se.431 s, 524,102
- : 147,400 e
171043 78,200 108,78
106,955 1,956,543 1392353 36705 09 2,353,637
TemsAN 1803021 T2 SvalLae 263,064,357 730,117,883
| EECTTS [T | Xy nru?l 55,404,561 | 28481071
753,550 2,352, 05 ngassiall  pprmasy) 08,7 158,404,553)|
AT 17,760.275) 1856743 115143203 13,095,700 ngio4az)
Tieealene 856437 memLms | Adasa 36,088,285 [T
ot s
201,595 {34,285.071
(1AL {254,288 ] (e (48,518,522 128,023,288}
TGELT3 35068647 TLaLAE _ Geaan 86,169,771 [T
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&

ADMIMISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salarias, allowantes ang banens
Pranvident fund eantibution
Commuricatian

Pearage & telegrams

Stalf welfare and medical expenses
ctse ushiel= and eanwsyance
Ropai and maintananca

Legal and professionsl charges
Aaditors sermuneration
Depreciatin

Printing and stationery

Ay tisernent 2 publ ity
Fee, subseription ans perisdicals
Rt fate e L.

Insurarce

Others

21 Auditors’ Remunesanion

s sudit
Halt yearly revie

Out of packet erpenes
Sades o on oLt snd el fee

aTHER IEDME | (LaSS]

Incame From Financial Aserts
Bruit on bank accounts

Gainyjlass) on lspasad of Investment - net
Revarsal of provision against douhtd debts

Galn on translatian of faralan cunancy colitors

Incame From MlonFinancial Asiats
{Losstigam on dispossl of preperty, plant and
equipment

231 Dividend incanne

FUTO0 shiras held o1 regonting date]
FUTON fshares sposed during the peried ]
FuTPL

22 {Less)gsin on disposal of investment
FuTeL
“uoied securitics

butual funds

FvToe
“wstad sacities

23
6.2

2

2z

TocAL 10 ToTA
2010 I 2020 2015 || 2020 210
Rupoor
Baszanz 12,009,156 S0m2m 2455622 1405279 14,554,768
722 512,852 268,823 104, £74,545 616,987
173178 261,353 usuar 1535 29588 sse358
6,765 8812 483 B080 11,247 42,852
18330 251,966 144,661 7143 8208 423,400
siazls 454,785 w6337 1810 1,019,526 1,076,368
10024 61035 5,525 12388 172,348 a0
0 02,393 nams 102,157 37,053 605560
255,175 283585 189,074 57576 24,250 1,35
1396426 LazL7E 855,995 08,552 2155012 1,710,350
182,010 223,700 107,541 45,403 70,551 264,102
8,301 128,105 51748 25,000 120,50 156,105
Eropeny 574743 6,011 116,848 54041 591,31
16088 - mon 60000 -
56,702 151868 &4,07 36911 160,775 218,760
23702 364223 freye e as17%6 438,265
% % (2 ERIR ERYE] FEFYE) GRS
020 s
Rupaes Rupess
197 500 17500
70,000 70,003
75,875 3472
26750 289
R ETRT
EXPORT Il LOCAL 1[ TOTAL
T30 FEFCRN | I T N TT TR BT FTe)
23309 225487 158418 A5 78D 397,510 27228
38495 L186359 s85.570 240750 139085 1,477,000
< 5761523 , 578,523
- 28254 - 5736 - 34,000
210504 1,450,128) 133, M1 (394,324) 250,644 {1,744,443)
= = 25,000 snan 25,000 sa,000
- 313961 - - 5113960
763 (5361 5,060 (1045 1269 {209}
B S 77 SO e . O Y ] N e
axaes
s01.785

394,350
1394063 1a17,008

T,704,243)

(15 343 {158,215
=

EETZ]

[ERZIRIE)
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24, FINANCE COST DIPORT. I LOCAL 1 OTAL
020 2018 Il 2020 w5 T 1028

Warkoup on aaport refinance L8607 796,535 1,209,820 161260 205,992 85,995
Markoup on ruaning finance 95673 553,955 22086 ey ) 225759 §7,502
Warkeup on MTF salary and vages (Covi13] 1982 - 12,15 - 2000 .
Bank charges 1m0z 1406220 B12,981 285408 2,042,488 1691,622
Waricup on ablicy zgainst asset subject to finance
lease 152,184 143384 100,841 28,202 153,085 17,088
Exchangs (losshnet 758,38 - - 175838 .
Brokesaga and other <hasgss 38270 135334 24098 747 468 162,60
Capital Gain Tox 604 . 0966 - 52610 .
Varicup on MTS shares a14m - w081 - 498,374
Other markup - : 51413 1085676 523,013 1,035,676

RN~ TN - T I Y. T 1 ELECRD S192038

25 QTHER CHARGES

Werkers' profit partizipation fund 360,967 133637 505,758
Workers' welfare fund 7,158 50782 344,188
51811 508,661 184,118 1248.9% 1,093,080

26 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Aseament i of isengzged in
revienzd lay the Comaany's Chief Dparaing Decisien Maker 1o make decision shout résoureas 1o be allocated 1o the segment and assess 13 perfarmance. Further, discrsta fnancial
infarmation is avalable far each segment

structure snd the Campany is arganized o the following twe apesating segments:

Export
Leeal

Maragement monitors the opersting results of above mantionsd segments separately for the purpase of making decisions abaul rasaurees to be allocated and ol assessing

perfommanc,

Segment revanisa and segment rasal fav the year are as fallows:

EXPORT It LOEAL 1 TOTAL

2020 2018 I 2020 w1y 1] 2020 2019
Met Sales 223,267,080 374,991,668 214,199,343 76,107,299 537457423 351,098,967
Gt of goods sald (I94ERTTI EOSISET (L824 (8297530 (486,169,771 (13,993,170}
Gross prafit 28,579,507 1296031 2,707,895 7809767 51287652 32,105,797
Adininisteative and selling espences. (28067810 {18202,59) ESSLTB QAR (21,452,557) 1,775,647}
Segment resuits 15673.026 6133438 14,156,069 [EFCETE) 210085 10,329,151
Other incamme / flass| 126,120 11082289 883300 46895 11K 11,129,178
Unreslized gain / loss} on resalyation of (354593 (352929 1235012 [71620) (589,205] (424559)
investments held for trading
Finirce cost 155506581 (345,191 (75458 {L7I68181 113.308.138) (5,192,097
Other eharges (751811 (508,661} [458,135) (184418 11,249,346) (1,093,380}
Profit hefare tauation from continuing operation 10,311,954 12559012 5,553,254 2159641 16,865,217 14,748,653
Taxabion

Current EREETT] [ERZEETH) (2.141,903] (1071 (537057 14,510,990
- prer {2258,837) « (1,406 661) - [3,755,48

{5ASL507) [ERZTETY] (3,436,564) (L7 18430.071) 14,510,309)

Profit after taatian fram cenfinuing cperation. 4,820,456 8,809,085 2,914,690 A28 568 1735146 10,237 663
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301,

02

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES
re the accounts for

 Inchuding 1 bengfits to the Chif avecutive, Director and Exerutiues of the Campany ave as follovrs:

2020
Divectars || Chicf Exceutive [ Eracutives | irectors | Chief Excoutive || Exccutives
Basie salary 1.161,290 2870568 - 1307087 3870,964 -
Alowances S8710 2128022 - 608513 2139,032 -
Company's contbution o provident fund 86774 322581 - 92,258 21581 :
Medleal expenses 85,741 95,272 - 63756 110,27 -
Faes = .
Managerial ramuneration - - = < . =
Commissian or bons ) : 95,774 2581 .
Reirmbursabia axpenses with nztura of a perquisita or benafit - - - -
Othar pesauisites and benefits in cah o in kind staling their E % - 3 =
nature and, sihere

3,802.518 6,420,853 - 1,993,788 6,755,289 -

Humber af persants) 1 1 [ 1 1 ]

281 A sumof fs 161,000 (2019 .

147,000} was paid being fae for attending the Board of Directors' mesting,

282 Chisf executive and Other Exscufives are prowded with frea w2 of Company maintained cars. They 2r alzo entitled for medical facility to tha extant of reimburssment

af actual expenditure and athet benehits i aczordance with th
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

torrne of emplayment.

Al transactions velving related parmies arising in the normal course of business are conducted at commercial terms and eondinons. The related parmies comprise stal
ratirement funds, directors and key managament personnal Transactions with ralates parties , othar than thess disclosed elsawhere | these Ainancial statemants, are follows:

Balances:

Provident Fund - cutstznding balance.
Advance ta CEQ

Transactions:
Advance ta CE0
Opening balance
Paid advanc during the year

Refund sduence during the year

Cantribution L stalf retirsment benefit plans
Key manzgament perscnnal's remuneration and other hanefits

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES.

The fallowing infermatien i based on lstest un-auditad finsncisl stataments of fund:
Sizz of the fund - total assets

Percentage af investient made

Fair value of investments

Cost af abeve investments

The beaakup o faie vslue of investment is: 2020 2018

Parcentage  Percentage
UBL Money Masket Fund 95 .00
Bank 4 Habib Munafa Fund 25.06% 72.26%
Investment 11 Shares 3458 074

2020 2019
Rupes Rupess
7452 481,732
587452 51,732
- 130302
104532 £53230
104,557 783,533
104,592, (753532

LEazan
B749077
9,405,000 5,936,094
ALtz B2
3867015 1261639
1531302 .
100,600 1,000,000
1325914 261,640

Iternanional Knitwear Limitad Staff Provident Fund halds the investments whieh are in aceardance with the provisions of section 718 of the Companies Act 2017 an the Rules

Formulated for this purpae,
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BT CATEGORY

ks at June 30, 2020
Aenoust in Rupass
Mottt AL AT00 G |
i

RNANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equnalat &30 . .
Inyestments = 8,506,300 14T 81
Lome term depesils 1260
Track debts - considesed good AT
Loars and advances 12000
Ocher recehvables pE/AL:S e 4
Total Finzacial Assets ML 5506301 4,478,281
FINRNCIAL LIABRITIES
Lease litilty - - - 1088
Shart e finance undar mark-up avangement : i 5 058,581
Creditons, aceruzd and ether payables - - - 0311477
Total Finascial Lisbifies z G : 186,508,403

& at lune 30, 2013

Aol st AL #1100 Dt
kabilties
FINRAICIAL ASSETS
Cash 2nd cash aquivalent 26097 - -
Investments - 4inan 17,768,256
Lomg temn deposits 208250 -
Tradk debts - o ered pood S48
Laovs and admnces 1267500
Other recehvables R 4 .
Total Frasial sts R IRl PR
FINANCIAL LIABAITIES
Lease ity - 145075
Shart tesm finance under mark-up arangement = - - 83,150,154
Creditars, accnued and cther peyables - . 338,93
Total Finaaclal Lizhiftes = = - 156008879
30 FINKAICIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

52

The Baard of Directors af the Company bave overal responsibiltyfor the establishment and oersight of Company’s sk management frameseork. The Bnard i abo responsiblfor dsveloping and monitaring
the Company'srisk maragement poliies

This Companys actWties egpase it ta 3 uarety of iguidty sk, credit rik, ane] market risk ficluding currancy ish, interest rate risk and peice sk, Camgsany's overals risk managemsnt policy fucuses un the
o b 1o v { Hocts o fh

Credit sk

Cregit rish represents the risk thak onz perty to a finatial nstrument w4l cayse a Financied koss for the ok party by failing to discharge an obligation, The Company's eredit risk is primarily atiributadle to s
L Local eredit sales are essentilly to Khaad, Rece sales are seoured againss letter of credit. The eredit isk o liquid funds i limited Beause couter parfies
ate banks ith reascrably high credit rafings.




<5 Iniernational Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

i Exposure to credit sk

i ffnancil assls srposure Th 5

2000 Pl
fupaes Rupees

Fianelal assets

Trade debts 54,580,348

Laansand edances 73811

Other receliables 18,882 741

[

The:trade debts are e fram foveign i locs custamers for et and oca ssles respectvel. Wazrin f the trde cebts fam forei custamers are serused agans leers f resit. Management ssesses
the credit cudbtyof Joal and foreign ustomers, aking into account ther el positin; past evperince and cther factors. Far bank balances, fnanczlintucions. withsong credit ratigs are cceed

their PF baksnces
‘The Company 3l o | wingthe h losses on local
i by reference 1 fast defult experience of the debtor and 2n analyse of the dabenr's uarent financialpesinan, adjize for tactces hat ars speciic 1o he debtors genara econonic condtians.of the
" well s ccodonsat he et date,
323 Market Rigk
Batket ek s the ik that the i wse ar ot [ g it a8 3 el of Ieesestrates ot the
Fating of the fesase o the istmument e , 9 ply and demand of securities sed Reidity in he ket

Market 1k camprses ofthree types ofrisk: eurvency sk, prafit rote ik and ocher prce ke
i Carencyrisk

urteney ik the gk thet the Tl vlue o futare csh s of s naneil nstument wl Auste becaise: o thanges i foelgh eichange raes Eurrene rsk ares el ram faure commereil
rangaetons o sistdueto ares
Financial zasets inchuge . Nil {2018 : Rs43, 74,8411 which are subject to currancy sk

Sensititty saalysis

The 10 percenit strergihening (weakening of Pak Rupee against USHat lune 30, 2020 woubd hane Iecreased] { increased profit and boss accordingly. This analvss assumes that ol ather variabies remain
constanl.

lil iterstrate i

tarast rate risk ragresents toe ik that sva fair value ar future eash flows of 2 tinancial Inetrument wil of changae The Company bas
taearlng financia assers and lsbifities whose falr vahue ar uture ash flowes wal st hecause of changes in marked interest raes,

Homeser, Compan do possess short term inlerest besring financial Kabliizs which indocles Rs. 87,058,531 {2019: Rs. 69,159 164) which ar= subfect ta interest vate rish. Appicatle interst rate for
finaniial mstruments e been Indicated nvespecive nutes

Falr vele sensithity analyss o Sred rate nstrusents
The Company does not account for any fsed rate financial assets and fisblbes at fir welus thraugh of prfit or lss. Therefare, 3 change i interest rate i the repcrting cte ol nat affect the
statement of proit o lss.

Cash flow sensitiaty analysis for varlable rate instruments

Juthange of 100 bass paines i KIBOR SBP ase Rere sl iakilities 2 the reparting B it o s by i . 01681 milicr).
it The s E

il Otherpricerisk
Bice K TG e sk that T Fai vl o fte cah e of 3 becaise fices ather Than these aris o o eterest eat sk o ey
ik, whesher the sl i s, or simlar inthe ket
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13 Liguidity Rk
Lguidity sk s the risk that the Comparry wil eneouster diffcubty in meeting obligatians assaeisted with finaneia lablites. Tre Comgrang mznages Nquiio rsk by mantaring sufilent. cash and cash
equialents, Ths follatng are the cant actual maturies of nanelsl assets and il lailviss:

(7 O alance shat assets and Eabiltos:

Efectve ateclinterst | Matentysptoons | Maturtyafier | | Matsaty sptoane | Maturtyaer | Toud
% fRange e ane year e e yesr
el asets:
Long term depasts - - - - HST 1052600
Inestments - . 8506300 ATS TR 985,06
Trade debls E 23420504 d 2410504
Other receiaties . - - - 089S oS
Cash and bark balances 7508 1RG4 - g S6LTY = 13532
1800344 - L1548 TSRS tbsaiant san,n
Fnancil lnblities:
Long e ladlysganst L year HBOR: 255 41957 1551865 207LESY - 1001 852
assts subject 0 fnance
ottt frarce urder 3 Months KSR 1285 &
markup sirangement S ate 15
02056561 . 62056551 - - 2,058,581
Creitoes: acenued e athes ajables - 1w aTIeT o797 wmangm
Uncltned e nd = - 3 1710829 3 1720829 1280628
EXE) LESLEES 130733 104 108,605 104,108,605 188235 088
sy g0 e s vl mssd G sewss (a6
[5) O# bakance sheet Kabiities 35 stated in nate 19 amounts to Rs. 20.59 milion.
[ Balanee sheet asets and Esilities:
Efectie ateclinterest | Matertyuptoone | Meturitystir | O | Mty sptoane | Maturtyaer | Towl
% fRange ear ane year year ane year
Fnancil asets:
Leng term degesits - - - - - 2k L2600 1052600
Leng term Investments - - - s 17760756 154687 1346827
Trace debrs - - - - 54580348 - SASEDME 4500348
Other recenatiss 18882741 . 18862741 8887
Cashand bark balances A5%G10% 14447 - 30447 136350 - 135350 L0877
FEERT] B L9417 TIRM0 194035 7,500,856 015553
Financial liabiltties:
Long term kabity againat Lyear KBORS 255 oLz e 18075 - 1450795
ety subjeet o finanee.
St erm financetnder 3 Months KIBOR 41584
mirk-up smangesnert SR 3t 1% — . — . —
Craditors, scerued and ather paables - - - 84356580 54,3365 #3385
Unclmeetiend - 1523135 z 1523125 150,125
561, ED HInss - HIM%5 1515300k
senditivty gon —lSuieal__(pas (91560502 (SIUGA ISEILES  ILOREN. (S

(5} O baance sheet Fabities a5 stated in pote 19 ansounts to Rs. 2221 million,
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3

324 Capital Risk Management
The ebjective of the Company when managing copital, | ., its shareholders' squity, is to safeguard Its sbility 1o eontinue as  going concern so that
It can continue o provide returns far shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders: and to meintain & Strang capital base Lo susbort the
sustained develapment ai 15 businesses.
Tha capital structisra of the Company is aculty bazed It has financed ll its projacts and business epansions throagh squity financing and navar
resarted an debt financng. However, the Company has availed shart term barrawing for warking capital purpeses anly.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value & the price that would be received to sell an asset or aaid to transfer a liability in an orderly scipants al the
measurement date.

The corrying values of all financial assets and liabilties reflected in the financial statements approximate ther fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financizl instrumants that are measurad subsequant to Inttial recognibion at falr value, grouped Into Levals 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value s abservabie.

Leuel 1 fair value mensurements are thoas derived from queted prices {unsdjustad) in sctive markets far identical sasees o labilities

Lewel 2 fair value measurements are thase derived from inputs ather than quated prices indudad wi
liability, either direetly [1.e. as prices) ar indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

i Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

Level 3 fair value measurenments are those derived from valuation technigues that inchude inputs for the asset or hability that are net based on abservable
market data {unobseruable inputs}.

Asat June 30, 2020, the Company has no matersl level 1, 2 or 3 assets or habilies except equity nstruements disclosed at level 1 of fair value hierarchy

PRODUCTION CAPACITY 2020 2019
Instailed capscity (Pea) 1,500,000 1,300,000
Actual praductian (Pes.b 910639 983,061

10 is difficult ta deseribe arecisely the aroduction capacity in The textile industry singe it fluctustes widsly depending on various factars suth as count of
Varn suun, taw matsrisl used. ste

Reasans for shortfall

The short fal in sctual pradustion during the year when compared with capacity is mai
The actusl praducrion is planned to meet the internal demand and orders in hand,

y an accaunt af

The spread af Covid—16 as & pandemic and eansequantly impasitian of lack dawn by Federal and Provincial Gousrnments of Pakistan has effected the
praduction and ssle valumes of the Company due ta dosure of plant during the lack dovm per

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019
Mumber of smplayess as on the date of financial statemens a0z 32l
+ Factary employees 152 191
Other emplayees 17 13

Average number of employees during the year: —_ m_ ouc
- Factory employees e 160

- Other employess a7 135

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved by the aard of directors of the Company and autharized for issua on Qcaber (1, 2020,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directars in their meeting held on Dctober 01, 2020 has proposed 3 final cash dividend of Rs.0.50 per share amounting to Rs.4.84 Milion
{2018: Rs 0.5 per share amaunting to Bs, 458 million] for the year ended June 30, 2020 The 2pproval of the skareholders af the Company shall
be obtained at the upcoming Annual General Meetng for the year ended June 30, 2020 The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 do not
inelude the effect of the proposed final cash dividend which wall be accaunted for n the year end ing June 30,2011

FIGURES
381

ures have been rounded off to the nearest of rupees.

3.2 cCorresponding Figures have baen reamangad and raclassifiad, where necessary, for the pUrpose of better presentation and comparisian, Howsver
ne significant raclassification has bean mada during the year.

1o =z

WASEEM SHAFI| INAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director ] CFO
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab

Total Shares Held

261 1 to 100 7,434
219 101 to 500 56,618
629 501 to 1000 355,943
85 1001 to 5000 194,815
23 5001 to 10000 176,226
8 10001 to 15000 99,235
4 15001 to 20000 66,595
9 20001 to 25000 201,942
1 25001 to 30000 30,000
2 35001 to 40000 75,468
3 40001 to 45000 131,000
3 45001 to 50000 146,518
3 50001 to 55000 159,750
1 60001 to 65000 63,531
2 70001 to 75000 145,132
1 85001 to 90000 87,000
2 100001 to 105000 202,218
1 105001 to 110000 108,849
1 110001 to 115000 113,686
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 155001 to 160000 158,500
1 160001 to 165000 162,780
1 175001 to 180000 176,658
1 235001 to 240000 238,000
1 250001 to 255000 250,541
1 280001 to 285000 284,150
1 300001 to 305000 300,466
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 665001 to 670000 669,792
1 720001 to 725000 721,061
1 830001 to 835000 832,153
. 2525001 to 2530000 2,528,143
1272 9,675,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
NAEENM SHAF| 5 844,044 an
HUMAIRA SHAFI 3 1,068,742 11.05
WASEEM SHAFI 2 43233 0.45
JAVED KHAN 2 8,089 0.08
BUSHRA SHAF| 1 3870 0.04
MUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 16,125 0.17
MOHAMMAD SAIID HUSSAIN 1 1,500 0.02
SALEHA MAJID i 750 0.01
MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1 1,500 0.02
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 0
Executives 0 -
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1 67 0.00
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 4 1,239,546 1281
Mutual Funds
General Public
a. Local 1243 6,412,353 66.28
Foreign Investor - - -
OTHERS 7 35,141 0.36
Totals 127 9,675,000 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held  Percentage
RASHID ABDULLA 2528143 26.13
HUMAIRA SHAFI 1,068,742 11.05
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

SNo.  Foliakt Name of shareholder Number of shares Perts
[irectars and their spausets) and minar children
1 2 MAEEM SHAF| 663,792 692
2 520 MAEEM AHMED SHAF 17122 002
3 3041 MAEEM AHMED SHAR =50 oot
4 01826-52175  NAETM AHMED SHARI 5,000 089
s 0327744650 NAEER AHMED SHAFI 162,780 168
[ 13 HUMAIRA SHAFI 721,061 743
7 HUMAIRA SHAF| 63,531 066
B 0327757487 HUMAIRA SHAF| 284,150 254
s 1 WASEEM SHAT) 38,468 041
10 3025 WASEEM SHAFL 3,765 004
1 982 JRVED KHAN 1500 oo
12 10629-132285 JAVED KHAN 5,589 007
13 20 BUSHRA SHAF 1870 o.04
12 2811 MUHAMIAAD SHAF 16135 017
15 2981 MOHAMMAD SAID HUSSAIN 1,500 082
1% 3057 SALEHA MAUID 750 a0t
7 3053 MUDASSIR HASIE KHAN 1,900 08
17 1,987,853 2055
| Assaciated Companies, undertakings and related parties
hiL
0
Executve
1
5 =
1 03880-28 MATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAM &7 0.00
1 67 9,00
1 02113-21 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 238,000 246
2 0213829 FREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 158,500 164
3 03277-1651 FIRST UDL MODARABA 833,153 880
4 0327778335 TRUSTEE NATICONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FLIND 10893 011
4 1281
Mutual Funds
[
Eoreign Invesior
ML
Qthey
1 2976 THE COMPANY SECRETARY a2 0ga
2 021133611 First UDL Modsraba Staff Provident Fund 3750 oot
3 021133843 APEX FINANCIAL SERVICES (RVT | LIVITED 10,000 010
4 02113-3850 CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES {PVT.| LINITED 6,000 0.08
5 0327782127 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVGLENT FUND TRUST 382 080
G 04341-3265  RAD SYSTENS (PVT) LTD 14,000 014
7 05728-24 STOCK STREET [PRIVATE) LIMITED 537 oot
7 EERTTY 036
General Public Lacal &3 6,412,393 6628
Total FFEr] 9,675,000 100.00
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Consent Required

For Annual Reports through e-mail

Dear Shareholder(s)

The securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification {SRO 787(1) 2014) dated 8
September 2014 has allowed the circulation of Company’s annual balance sheet and profit and loss account,
auditor's report and directors’ report etc. (Audited Annual Financial Statements) to shareholders along with

notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through e-mail.

Therefore, if you wish to receive company’s (Audited Annual Financial Statements) along with notice of
{AGM) via - email, you are requested to provide this letter duly filled and signad to us or our Share Registrar

at their below address:

E— MAIL ADDRESS:

CNIC NUMBER:

FOLIO / CDS ACCOUNT #

M/s €DC Share Registrar Services Limited

Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 95-B, Block '8, S.M.CH.S,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: {92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdesrsl.com/website: www.edesrsl.com

Yours sincerely
For International Knitwear Limited

il

JAVED KHAN
Director i CFO

SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDER
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To:
Subject: Banka account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode.
Dear Sir,

I, Mr./Mrs./Ms.
5/0./D/0,W/0.

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the
below mentioned bank account.

(i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No,/CDC Participants 1D A/C No.

CNIC No. **

Passport No. {in case of foreign Shareholder)***

Land Line Phone Number
Cell Number

(ii) Shareholder's Bank Detail
Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank 's Name

Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentioned infermation to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Signature of the Shareholder

Notes:
The Sharehalders hawng physical shares have to address the Company Secretary IKL on the address given below:
The Company Secratary

Intemational Knmwear Linited
FEALLSITE

and Sharehelders having thelr acecunts with (D s Limie have to 16 relavant Nember

~+*please artach attested phatacapy of the CHIC.
“**Please attach attested phatacapy of the Passport
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<% International Knitwear Limited

FORM OF PROXY
30th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/We langhter/wife/husband of . Sharcholder of

International Kmitwear Limited, holding________ ordinary shares hereby appoint
whoismy______ [siate relationship (if any) with the proxy; required by Government

regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husband of , {holding

ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo. — ) [required by Government] as my
/ our proxy, to attend and vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 27th, 2020 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed thi day of 2020.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. 1D No. Sub-Account No.|  Shares held
Signamure over
Revenue Stamp
Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signanre
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No,
Address Address

MNotes: 1. The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The signature must tally with the spacimen signature/s registered with the company.

3. Ifa proxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited , the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner, Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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